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Municipality of Chatham-Kent
Community Development

Planning Services

315 King St. West, P.O. Box 640
Chatham ON N7M 5K8

Tel: 519.360.1998 Fax: 519.436.3237
Toll Free: 1.800.714.7497

January 3, 2012

Ontario Heritage Trust
10 Adelaide Street East
Toronto ON M5C 1J3

Re: Registration of Heritage By-laws
Municipality of Chatham-Kent

At the Council Meeting held November 21, 2011, Chatham-Kent Council passed the
following By-laws designating the indicated properties under Part IV of the Ontario
Heritage Act for their cultural heritage value and interest. The By-laws have been
registered on title of the respective properties:
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BY-LAW NUMBER 191-2011

OF THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF CHATHAM-KENT

A By-law to designate the property known as 14 King Street West, Community
of Chatham, as being of historical and architectural value or interest.

FINALLY PASSED the 21% day of November, 2011.

WHEREAS the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter 0.18 as amended,
provides that the Council of the Municipality of Chatham-Kent may designate a
property within the boundaries of the Municipality to be of cultural heritage value
or interest;

AND WHEREAS Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Chatham-Kent
has appointed the Heritage Chatham-Kent Advisory Committee and the said
committee has recommended that the Municipality designate the hereinafter
described property pursuant to The Ontario Heritage Act;

AND WHEREAS given Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of
Chatham-Kent has given Notice of Intention to Designate the hereinafter
described property to be of cultural heritage value and interest pursuant to the
Ontario Heritage Act;

AND WHEREAS no Notice of Objection to the proposed designation has been
received by the Corporation of the Municipality of Chatham-Kent;

AND WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule “B” annexed
hereto;

NOW THEREFORE the Municipality of Chatham-Kent enacts as follows:

1. That the property more particularly described in the attached Schedule “A”
be designated to be of cultural heritage value and interest pursuant to The
Ontario Heritage Act.

2. The Clerk be authorized register the by-law against the property described
in Schedule “A” hereto in the proper land registry office.

3. The Clerk be directed to cause a copy of this by-law to be served on the
owner of the aforesaid property and on the Ontario Heritage Foundation
and cause notice of the passing of this by-law to be published in a
newspaper having general circulation in the municipality.

THIS By-law shall come into full force and effect upon the final passing
thereof.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this)21st day of November,
2011. ~ L

Thereby certify this to be a true copy of By-law -

Number 191201 { passed by Municipality of _ Steve Pinsonneaullt
Chatham-Kent Council at its' meeting

heldon Moy 2V 201

andthesameisnowinﬁlllfc’)meande&u

The Corporation of the Municipality
of Chatham-Kent












Description

Statement of Significance

' Description of Historic
[ Place:

1.e. Description of
Property

14 King Street West, known historically as the George Stephens Building, is |
located on the south side of King Street West, west of William Street in the
City of Chatham, Municipality of Chatham-Kent. The property consists of a
three-storey commercial building with a tin facade that was built in 1388 by |
local Chatham architect, T. J. Rutley.

Heritage Value:

1.e. Statement of Cultural
Heritage Value or
Interest

Historical or Associative Value:

The George Stephens Building was built in 1888 by Thomas John Rutley
(1847-1910). Rutley was a well-known local architect who was responsible for
the design of numerous buildings in Chatham. The extent of his contributions
to the built form of the City has not been determined, but he 1s clearly
associated with many local landmarks including the Central School (1893),
Harrison Hall (1890), and the Thomas Stone Store (1888).

The George Stephens Building was built for local businessman and politician |
George Stephens (1846-1916). The site housed his hardware business that was
founded in 1872 in a building on the same location. He owned the business

with his brother William, and subsequently D.H. Douglas was made a partner.
The ads for the store cited, “Geo Stephens Hardware Stoves and Implements,”
and listed items for sale such as paints, cutlery, guns, fur coats, buggies,

roofing and cut glass. In 1913, the business was sold to Doug Allison and |
continued to operate as a hardware store under the name, A.D. Allison
Hardware Co. Zink Hardware and the Chatham Shopping News also operated
from the building at later dates.

In addition to owning and running the hardware store, George Stephens was an
active politician. He served on Chatham City Council in 1899 and 1900. On
November 7, 1900, he was elected as the Member of Parliament for the County
of Kent. During his time as an M.P. he secured the dredging of the Thames
River. Stephens only served one term as M.P., being defeated n 1904 by
Albert Clements.

Design or Phyvsical Value:

The George Stephens Building is a rare surviving example of cast-iron frame
construction on a commercial building in North America. The large window
areas are made possible by the use of a light-weight cast-iron frame (as
opposed to wood and brick construction). This building method was a
forerunner of the modern skyscraper and originated on the east coast of the
United States in the 1840s, spreading to Chicago in the 1850s and was used for
commercial construction into the 1890s.

It was believed that the front of this building was created from cast-iron,
however, restoration in the 1990s revealed that the fagade is actually tin. The
tin front is affixed to wood panels that are attached to brick exterior. Tin fronts
provided the ability for ornate detailing and were cheaper than stone. As a local
supplier of construction materials, it is speculated that George Stephens crafted
the fagade himself. The detailed ornamentation including the pillars at the
edges of the fagade, window surrounds, rows of medallions and leaves, and
bracketed cornice show the malleability of tin.

The three third storey windows are framed by an arch with a keystone and each
window is toped by a semi-circular transom. Inside the arch in gold relief is the
words, “Geo Stephens.” and the construction date, “1888.” Typical of

commercial buildings of the 1880s, the structure has a decorative cornice with |
brackets and a flat roof. Also of note, the centre window on the second storey
was the largest pane of glass used in a commercial structure in Chatham at the
time of it’s construction. It was used to display the stoves that were sold in the

Geo Stephens store.

The George Stephens Building was a forerunner of innovation. It had the first ’
elevator in Chatham, and during restoration a tube running from the basement
to the top floor was discovered and is believed to have served as a primitive ‘

intercom system.

Contextual Value: ‘
King Street is the historic main street of Chatham and the south side has

historically been the busier side of the street, housing some of the oldest brick |
buildings in the City. This area has come to represent the centre of business ,
and the home to many of the area’s hostelries. Throughout the 1850s and 60s, ‘
the comer of King and William Streets housed the first Baptist Church and

from there along the south side of King to the Market Square was a series of |















